
 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

November 13, 2018, 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
INVOCATION:  Ahmed Rafi, Member of the Lakewood Muslim Community 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Boy Scout Troop 140 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Steve Croft 
 Vice Mayor Todd Rogers 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Jeff Wood 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
Presentation from Clayton Heard, Field Representative for U.S. Congressman Alan Lowenthal 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an item be removed for 
individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be considered immediately 
following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 MEETING MINUTES - Staff recommends City Council approve Minutes of the Meetings held 

September 25, and October 9, 2018 
 
RI-2 PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS - Staff recommends City Council approve report of personnel 

transactions. 
 
RI-3 REGISTERS OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends City Council approve registers of demands. 
 
RI-4 CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES’ ACTIVITIES - Staff recommends City Council approve report 

of City Council Committees’ activities. 
 
REPORTS: 
3.1 LAKEWOOD YOUTH HALL OF FAME REGULATIONS - Staff recommends City Council 

approve the revised regulations. 
 
3.2 TREE LIGHTING PREVIEW 
 
 



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a qualified individual with a disability and need an 
accommodation to participate in the City Council meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, 

CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; or at cityclerk@lakewoodcity.org at least 48 hours in advance to ensure that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting. 

 
Agenda items are on file in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, and are available for public review 

during regular business hours.  Any supplemental material distributed after the posting of the agenda will be made available for 
public inspection during normal business hours in the City Clerk’s Office.  For your convenience, the agenda and the supporting 

documents are available in an alternate format by request and are also posted on the City’s website at www.lakewoodcity.org 

City Council Agenda 
November 13, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

LAKEWOOD SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
1. REGISTER OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends Successor Agency approve register of demands. 
 
 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1. REGISTER OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends Housing Successor Agency approve register of 
demands. 

 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 RI-1 

 Routine Item 1 – City Council Minutes 
 
 will be available prior to the meeting. 





RI-2 

  COUNCIL AGENDA 
  November 13, 2018 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Report of Personnel Transactions 
 

Effective 
Name Title  Schedule Date     

 
1.  FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES 

 
A. Appointments 
 Barry Aboltin Skilled Trades Worker 13A 11/05/2018 
 
 James Matthews Skilled Trades Worker 13A 11/05/2018 
 
B. Changes 
 None 
 
C. Separations 
 None 
 

2. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 
 
A. Appointments 

None 
 

B. Changes 
None 
 

C. Separations  
William Bonilla Community Services Specialist B 10/21/2018 
 
Edmundo Canseco Community Services Leader II B 10/21/2018 
 
Christopher Crisostomo Community Services Officer B 10/24/2018 
 
Austin Pierce Community Services Specialist B 10/21/2018 
 
Kevin Tijerino Community Services Leader III B 10/21/2018 
 
Eric Walker Community Services Specialist B 10/21/2018 
 
 
 

    Thaddeus McCormack 
   City Manager 













CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
SUMMARY ACH/WIRE REGISTER OCT 2018 

 
ACH 
date  Amount  Recipient Purpose Period 

10/4/18                    605.86  MidAmerica HRA aka CEMRB Jul-Sep 2018 for 1 retiree 
10/4/18              99,781.66  CalPERS PERS Health Oct 2018 

10/11/18              95,083.52  IRS via F&M Fed taxes Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18                7,884.50  Southland C/U employee savings account Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18                3,813.50  F&A Fed C/U employee savings account Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18              26,389.26  EDD State taxes Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18                3,689.88  MidAmerica ARS aka APPLE Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18              11,249.29  VOYA VOYA 401(a) Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18                3,425.00  PARS via U.S. Bank excess stackable plan Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18                5,778.13  PARS via U.S. Bank stackable plan Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/11/18              20,581.88  VOYA VOYA 457  & ROTH Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/17/18              86,733.34  CalPERS PERS contribution  Sep 23-Oct 6, 2018 
10/23/18              57,989.10  City Light & Power monthly maint fee Oct-18 

 
10/25/18              94,829.97  IRS via F&M Fed taxes Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18                7,884.50  Southland C/U employee savings account Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18                3,813.50  F&A Fed C/U employee savings account Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18                3,561.46  MidAmerica ARS aka APPLE Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18              14,993.13  VOYA VOYA 401(a) Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18                9,237.16  PARS via U.S. Bank stackable plan Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18              25,371.95  VOYA VOYA 457  & ROTH Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18              26,215.23  EDD State taxes Oct 7-20, 2018 

 
10/25/18           375,514.80  FATHOM refund overpayment Nov 2017-Jul 2018 
10/29/18              87,298.09  CalPERS PERS contribution  Oct 7-20, 2018 
10/31/18              98,516.13  CalPERS PERS Health Nov 2018 

 
 
 
Council Approval                 _________________    ___________________________ 
    Date   City Manager 
 
 
Attest         __________________________       _________________________________ 
 City Clerk   Director of Administrative Services  



















RI-4 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
November 13, 2018  

 
 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Report of City Council Committees’ Activities  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
A brief update is provided for City Council review on the activities of the following standing 
committees: Park Development Committee, and the Public Safety Committee. 
 
STATEMENT OF FACT 
 
On Monday, October 22, 2018, the Park Development Committee met and discussed: 

• Rynerson Park Improvements 
• Lakewood Equestrian Center Contract Renewal 
• Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame Regulations 

 
The Park Development Committee provided staff direction regarding the following items: 

1. Report back to the City Council with a recommendation to postpone the purchase of new 
picnic shelters for Rynerson Park due to a lack of available funding. 

2. Schedule a future Park Development Committee Meeting to further discuss the 
development of a Request for Proposals for the operation of the Lakewood Equestrian 
Center.  The current agreement with Sandie Mercer Ranch, Inc. ends on June 30, 2019. 

3. Draft, for the council’s review and approval, a revised Hall of Fame Regulations.  The 
revised regulations will: 
 Denote the creation of a new award level, titled the Larry Van Nostran Future Star 

Award which recognizes the highest achieving freshman athlete for the year; 
 Reinstate the Chairman’s Award to provide an additional level of recognition for 

individuals with outstanding achievements otherwise not covered by the existing 
levels for which nominations are accepted; 

 Provide detailed definitions and guidelines for each award category listed in the 
regulations. 

 
On October 29, 2018, the Public Safety Committee/License & Permit Hearing Board met 
and discussed: 
 
Crime Trend/Statistics 

• Part 1 crime numbers were down from January to September when compared to 2017. 
The Committee requested a comparison of Part 1 crimes in Lakewood to other cities once 
the year crime data was finalized. Sheriff’s personnel stated that they would work on the 



Council Committees’ Activities 
November 13, 2018 
Page 2 
 

comparison to other cities and they would also do a comparison of Part 1 crimes in the 
city over the past 5 years. 

• The Committee was pleased with the low Part 1 crime numbers, but worried that there 
could be underreported crimes. Sheriff’s personnel felt that, in general, Part 1 crimes 
were not underreported, although some retailers may not be reporting larceny thefts to the 
fullest extent. 

• Part 1 crimes at Lakewood Mall were down 39% from January to September when 
compared to 2017. The Committee was very pleased with the trend and hopeful that it 
continues into next year, but felt that such low crime numbers may be difficult to match 
or beat next year.  

• A map showing where vehicles were stolen and recovered between January 1 and 
October 24, 2018 within the city was presented, and it appeared that grand theft autos 
(GTAs) were sporadic throughout the city, with no discernable pattern. Sheriff’s 
personnel thought that (GTAs) could be occurring at the mall because of the abundance 
of cars there, and in the east side of the city due to its proximity to the freeway.  Sheriff’s 
personnel stated that 1990s Hondas were the most common vehicles to be stolen 
throughout the county. 

• The Committee requested that information about crimes on the east side of the city be 
gathered and presented at the next meeting so that if specific crimes or any trends are 
occurring there, resources could be focused on those issues. 

 
Public Outreach 

• An article regarding sexual assault risks had been drafted and would be published soon to 
teach people not to fall for online dating scams and to protect themselves from sexual 
assault. The Committee recommended that the article be written as a scenario/story to 
catch people’s attention.  It was stressed to get this information to younger people. 

• Sheriff’s personnel stated that deputies would be meeting with staff of the Congregation 
Shir Chadash to go over safety tips and develop a response plan to an active shooter 
incident due to the recent shooting at a Pittsburg synagogue.  

• A panhandler article will be published soon. The quarterly crime report from the 
Lakewood Sheriff’s Station Captain was in the eMag.  The upcoming Award of Valor 
event will highlight deputies, firefighters and residents and could lead to profile stories. 

 
Neighborhood Watch Update 

• Staff was working to contact block captains and verify if they were actively or inactively 
participating in the Neighborhood Watch (NW) program.  Block Captains (BC) were 
being trained on the new standards of the program and the most active BCs would be 
invited to work with staff to recruit new BCs at city events. 

• The NW seminar for block captains on October 30 included a presentation about Crime 
Stoppers, a panel discussion between mall deputies and security about keeping the mall 
safe, and a parking violations presentation. 



Council Committees’ Activities 
November 13, 2018 
Page 3 
 

• Staff was working to organize various events in the upcoming months for residents and 
mall merchants to interact with deputies and the use of “Next Door” had been working 
well to post information about city events and was received positively by residents. 

 
City of Lakewood and “Crime Stoppers” Pilot Program 

• Sheriff’s personnel reported that they would be presenting information about Crime 
Stoppers at the October 30 Neighborhood Watch Seminar, and that the most important 
thing to do was to teach the public how to utilize the program. Crime Stoppers is a way 
for people to anonymously submit crime tips to law enforcement and potentially get 
rewarded if their tip(s) lead to an arrest or finding a missing person.  If law enforcement 
needs to follow up with someone who submits a tip, they are only able to do so through a 
Crime Stoppers chat room and contact the person through their username, not their 
personal information.  Sheriff’s personnel also stated that it was important to teach people 
what kind of information to submit such as specific dates times that suspicious activities 
occur and descriptions of people, locations, and vehicles. 

• Staff noted that various materials were being printed with Crime Stoppers’ information to 
be distributed at neighborhood markets, schools, and other areas. Information would also 
be given to businesses within the city so that they could hang signs at their stores, and 
there could potentially be street banners in the future to promote the program. 

• The Committee noted that it is preferred for people to contact law enforcement directly. 
This makes exchange of information and follow-up easier, and Crime Stoppers is a great 
option for those who wish to remain anonymous.  The Committee also noted that stations 
that promote Crime Stoppers the most, receive the most tips and get the most arrests. 

 
Lakewood Sheriff’s Station Front Desk Personnel 

• Sheriff’s personnel had meetings with desk personnel, and city staff attended one of the 
meetings.  The meetings went well and were very positive.  Sheriff’s personnel reassured 
the desk personnel that they did a great job handling a large amount of calls each day and 
they expressed hope that the dispatchers found it helpful to listen to their past calls to 
improve service.  Sheriff’s personnel were encouraged by the care that the desk personnel 
had for the jobs. 

• Staff who attended the meeting felt that the desk personnel took their jobs seriously and 
want to do well.  Staff communicated that the city has high customer service standards 
and that the dispatchers who represented the city’s partner, LASD, should be held to 
those same standards.  

• The Committee questioned what they could do to show appreciation for the desk 
personnel and Sheriff’s personnel and noted that city staff sharing their appreciation and 
attending the meeting went a long way.  The Committee offered to take some sort of 
goodies to the station as a token of appreciation for the desk personnel on behalf of the 
city and City Council.  Staff stated that something would be arranged in the upcoming 
quarter. 



Council Committees’ Activities 
November 13, 2018 
Page 4 
 

• Public Information office staff suggested posting an article with a photo of desk 
personnel so that the public could learn who was answering their calls.  Sheriff’s 
personnel stated that they would share a picture with PIO. 

 
 
Follow-up from Previous Meetings 

• Sheriff’s personnel reported that there had been 54 calls to Lakewood Station for 
homeless/transients in the Paramount Boulevard and Carson Street area for erratic 
behavior, panhandling, sleeping, and crime.  Deputies had observed the area and not seen 
any crimes occurring.  They will observe the area again overnight and report back.  The 
Committee discussed various businesses in the area and incidents/observations that the 
Committee members had witnessed. 

• The Committee discussed that despite positive crime numbers, there were increasing 
quality of life issues in the city that might stem from various state and county policies and 
residential code violations throughout neighborhoods.  

• Staff reported that they had begun working with neighboring cities that shared 
frustrations of not being able to access Measure H funds that were being collected from 
residents to help with homeless issues.  The Committee suggested that cities work 
together and speak with the L. A. County Supervisor. 

• Staff reported that a symposium with the Chamber of Commerce and law enforcement 
was being organized and would likely take place in January.  The symposium will discuss 
services of public safety for businesses, practices to safeguard businesses, and how to 
report crime.  The Committee encouraged staff to ask businesses to share their 
experiences at the symposium. 

• Staff stated that at the next meeting they would report on an annual inspection protocol 
for massage establishments to allow code enforcement to perform annual random 
visits/checks for violations.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file this report.   
 
 
 
Thaddeus McCormack 
City Manager 
 





 



3.1 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
November 13, 2018 

 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame Regulations 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
In 1980, Lakewood City Councilmember Larry Van Nostran and community leader and 
businessman Ron Piazza identified the City of Lakewood’s legacy of highly achieving youth 
athletes and collaborated to create the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame, a joint venture between the 
City of Lakewood and Piazza Family McDonald’s Restaurants.  In 1981, the inaugural Lakewood 
Youth Hall of Fame Banquet was held and a selection of athletes was recognized, with the highest 
award, the Athlete of the Year, going to wheelchair marathoner, Jim Knaub.  In the 37 years since 
the initiation of the awards program, the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame has become a staple in 
the Lakewood community.  The banquet is held annually, on the last Monday of February and the 
Hall of Fame is housed at the Piazza Family McDonald’s restaurant on Woodruff Avenue, south 
of Del Amo Boulevard. 
 
STATEMENT OF FACTS 
In the 37-year existence of the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame, 48 Athletes/Co-Athletes of the 
Year have been recognized and over 1,300 Performer of the Year and Special Achievement awards 
have been presented to athletes, coaches, and other individuals making significant contributions to 
Lakewood youth athletics.  Performers of the year have ranged from the recognizable sports of 
baseball, basketball, and football to the lesser-known sports of artistic roller-skating and team 
handball.  Special Achievement awards have been presented for several award categories, 
including Outstanding Sustained Contribution to Youth Sports, Scholar Athletes and the LYS 
Mayor’s Award, as detailed in the Regulations of the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame, approved by 
the City Council in August 2015.   
 
Those who are elected to the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame are first nominated by their school 
administrators, parents, or other members of the community.  Nominations are submitted 
according to a recurring list of award levels.  The list of nominations are compiled by city staff 
and provided to the Board of Electors in anticipation of the annual meeting to determine who will 
be elected each year.  The nominations are discussed and considered by the Board of Electors at a 
meeting held early in January.  By the conclusion of the Board of Electors Meeting, the list of 
inductees to be enshrined for the year is complete. 
 
HONORARY AWARD TITLE 
As stated above, Larry Van Nostran was a co-founder of the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame and 
the Chairman of the Board of Electors for over 30 years.  Staff initiated discussions and presented 
to the Park Development Committee a newly conceived award bearing the name of Mr. Van 
Nostran.  At the October 22 meeting of the Park Development Committee, staff were directed to 
title the new award the Larry Van Nostran Future Star Award, recognizing annually, a freshman  



Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame Regulations  
November 13, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
class athlete for his or her most outstanding achievements in one sport above all other nominees 
in their class.  The new award honors Mr. Van Nostran’s contribution to Lakewood youth sports, 
while adding a previously under represented population at the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame.     
 
LAKEWOOD YOUTH HALL OF FAME REGULATIONS 
In August 2015, the Lakewood City Council adopted a set of regulations for the Lakewood Youth 
Hall of Fame.  The regulations outlined various aspects of the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame, 
including award levels for which athletes may be nominated, the specific definitions of each Board 
of Electors seat, and terms and qualifications for Board of Electors members.  Since the adoption 
of these regulations, it has come to staff’s attention that it would be prudent to elaborate a further 
description and guideline for each of the award levels.  The Park Development Committee further 
directed staff to detail clear descriptions and guidelines for each award category listed in the 
regulations.  These guidelines now provide clearer direction for nomination and voting purposes 
among the Board of Electors. 
 
Finally, in the original development of the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame Regulations, the 
Chairman’s Award was inadvertently omitted.  The award category allows the Chairman of the 
Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame Board of Electors to accept nominations outside the previously 
adopted awards levels.  This award category would benefit the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame and 
provide opportunities to recognize athletes, coaches, administrators, or members of the community 
who have had significant impact on youth sports in Lakewood, and who may otherwise not fit in 
a current award category.  The award had been presented in 1986, 1991, 1992, 1995, 1998 and 
2007.  In brief, the Chairman’s Award would empower the Chairman of the Board of Electors to 
bring forward a nomination for consideration and subsequent vote by the Board of Electors.  The 
final direction from the Park Development committee was reinstatement of the Chairman’s Award 
to the regulations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
It is the recommendation of staff that the Lakewood City Council approve the revised Lakewood 
Youth Hall of Fame Regulations with the following amendments:   
 

1. Creation of a new award level titled the Larry Van Nostran Future Star Award, recognizing 
the highest achieving freshman athlete for the recognition year, and 
 

2. Reinstatement of the Chairman’s Award, to provide an additional level of recognition for 
individuals with outstanding achievements otherwise not covered by the existing levels for 
which nominations are accepted, and 
 

3. Clearly defined descriptions and guidelines for each award category listed in the 
regulations.  

 
 
Valarie Frost, Director    Thaddeus McCormack 
Recreation and Community Services   City Manager 



REGULATIONS 
 

OF  
 

LAKEWOOD YOUTH HALL OF FAME 
 

________________________ 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

GENERAL AND SPECIFIC PURPOSES 
 
 SECTION 1. The Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame is a function of the City of Lakewood 
in partnership with Piazza Family McDonald’s Restaurants.  The program is set forth to recognize 
athletes from the community and immortalize them within the McDonald’s restaurant on Woodruff 
Avenue.   
 

SECTION 2. The Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame will induct a new class annually.  The 
City of Lakewood Recreation and Community Services Department will solicit nominations for 
induction from the community and each of the four high schools in the city—Artesia High School, 
Lakewood High School, Mayfair High School and Saint Joseph High School.  Nominations are 
accepted and considered based sports seasons which conclude in the calendar year prior to the 
induction banquet.  Nominations will be reviewed and voted on by the Board of Electors. 

 
SECTION 3. Nominations will be accepted and voted on in the following categories: 
 
I.  Athlete of the Year: honors the athlete who has demonstrated the most outstanding 

achievement(s) in one or multiple sports for the year.  Once elected by the Board, 
the Athlete of the Year is removed from consideration for any other awards for the 
year being voted on. 

II. Performer of the Year for each recognized sport: honors the athlete(s) from each 
sport who has demonstrated the most outstanding achievement for the year.  
a. Distinguished Nominee: honors the athlete(s) who have demonstrated high 

achievement for the year, but does not meet the level of Performer of the Year 
winners. 

III. All-Round Performer: honors the athlete(s) who has demonstrated outstanding 
achievement in multiple sports for the year. 

IV. Outstanding High School Career Achievement: honors the athlete(s) who has 
demonstrated outstanding achievement over the course of his/her four-year high 
school career in one or multiple sports.  Nominations will only be accepted for 
athlete(s) completing his/her senior year of competition. 

V. Outstanding Sustained Contribution to Youth Sports: honors an individual(s) 
who has had a positive and significant impact on youth sports in the Lakewood 
community for an extended period of time. 

VI. Larry Van Nostran Future Star Award: honors one athlete who has 
demonstrated the most outstanding achievement in one sport among all high school 



freshmen.  Nominees are eligible for consideration regardless of the level at which 
they competed. (i.e. a freshman competing at the varsity level will be considered as 
would a freshman at the frosh-soph level)  The Larry Van Nostran Future Star 
Award may only be earned once. 

VII. McDonald’s Press On Award: honors an athlete(s) who has overcome significant 
obstacles and demonstrated outstanding achievement in one or multiple sports in 
spite of obstacles.  Nominations for this award will be presented to the Board of 
Electors, but will be voted on by the McDonald’s Corporation. 

VIII. Scholar-Athlete of the Year: honors one student-athlete from each Lakewood 
high school for outstanding academic and athletic achievement.  High school 
administrators will select one student.  The Board will not vote on this nomination. 

IX. LYS Coaches Mayor’s Award: honors Lakewood Youth Sports coaches who 
have achieved a service level of 18 sport seasons as a volunteer.  The LYS Coaches 
Mayor’s Award may only be awarded once and is the highest level of recognition 
for an LYS volunteer coach. 

X. High School League Champions/CIF Champions: honors all teams that have 
won a league or CIF championship.  No vote is required of the board. 

XI. Outstanding Youth Team: honors teams across the Lakewood youth athletic 
community which have demonstrated outstanding championship-level victories, 
generally beyond Lakewood’s borders.   

XII. Special Olympics Athlete of the Year: honors the Lakewood Special Olympics 
athlete who has demonstrated the most outstanding achievement(s) in one or 
multiple sports for the year. 

XIII. Special Olympics Coach of the Year: honors a Lakewood Special Olympics 
Coach who has demonstrated outstanding coaching practices, achievements, and 
dedication to the Special Olympians for the year. 

XIV. Chairman’s Award: honors athletes, coaches, administrators, and/or other figures 
in the Lakewood youth athletic community for outstanding accomplishments for 
the year, and/or over a period of time, and whose accomplishments do not otherwise 
fall within the defined categories listed above.  Nominations will be brought to the 
Chairman of the Board of Electors for consideration and he/she will present the 
nomination(s) to the Board to be put to vote. 

 
 SECTION 4. The Board of Electors will meet in January, annually, to select athletes to 
be inducted into the Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame.   
 
 SECTION 5. The City of Lakewood will host a banquet to induct new members on the 
last Monday of February of each year.  The banquet will be held in the Weingart Ballroom at The 
Centre at Sycamore Plaza.  The City of Lakewood will budget funds to host the event and will 
solicit sponsorships to aid in the cost of the event.  All inductees will be invited and will receive 
complimentary tickets as follows: three (3) tickets for Athlete of the Year, two (2) tickets for 
League Championship Teams and one (1) ticket for all other inductees. 
 
 
 

 



ARTICLE II 
 

BOARD OF ELECTORS 
 
 SECTION 1. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS OF BOARD MEMBERS.  The 
Board of Electors is comprised of City of Lakewood staff, high school representatives, community 
members, media, and elected and appointed officials.  The board will be comprised of no less than 
18 voting members and no more than 20.  Specified roles are outlined as follows: 
 
Non-voting Members: 
  
 (a) City of Lakewood Staff – City Manager, Director of Recreation and 

Community Services, Assistant Director of Recreation and Community 
Services and one (1) Community Services Manager overseeing event and 
Board of Electors meeting. 

 
 (b) Additional staff as deemed necessary may be appointed at the discretion of 

the Director of Recreation and Community Services. 
 
Voting Members 
 

(a) One (1) Chairperson of the Board of Electors – The Chairperson of the 
Board will assist Lakewood staff in coordination and direction of the Board 
of Electors Meeting, will give direction to the board when required and will 
deliver an address at the Hall of Fame Banquet.  The Chairperson of the 
Board of Electors will be a Lakewood City Council Member.   
 

 (b) Two (2) representatives from Piazza Family McDonald’s Restaurants. 
 
 (c) Eight (8) administrators from high schools in Lakewood – Two (2) Athletic 

Directors from each school are desired, but in the absence of an Athletic 
Director the school may delegate a voting representative (e.g. a Principal or 
Assistant Principal). 

 
 (d) One (1) Executive Director of the Weingart-Lakewood Family YMCA as 

representative of the organization. 
 
 (e) Two (2) representatives from local sports media. 
 
 (f) One (1) member of the Recreation and Community Services Commission, 

as named by the Director of Recreation and Community Services. 
 
 (g) One (1) staff representative from the California Interscholastic Federation 

(CIF), Southern Section – to be occupied by the Commissioner of CIF 
Southern Section or a designee of the Commissioner. 

 



 (h) No less than two (2) and no more than four (4) members at large from the 
Lakewood Community – Members at large will be appointed by the 
Director of Recreation and Community Services and will have affiliations 
to the Lakewood community and to the field of youth sports, thus being 
qualified to be contributing members of the Board of Electors.   

 
 SECTION 2. TERM OF OFFICE.  Each member shall hold office as follows: 
 
  (a) Chairperson of the Board will be appointed annually by the City Council.  

There will be no minimum or maximum term limit restriction. 
 
  (b)  Piazza Family McDonald’s representatives, high school administrators, 

Weingart-Lakewood Family YMCA Executive Director, sports media 
members, Recreation and Community Services Commissioner and CIF 
Southern Section Commissioner will be appointed based on position within 
each respective organization.  The positions will remain as members of the 
Board of Electors ad infinitum.   

  
  (c) Members at large will be required to submit an application to the City of 

Lakewood Recreation and Community Services Department.  Upon review 
of the application, each member at large will serve on the Board of Electors 
for a three (3) year term.  At the conclusion of each term, members at large 
must resubmit an application for review and approval by the Director of 
Recreation and Community Services.  There will be no limit on number of 
terms a member at large may serve.   





 

 
 3.2 

Item 3.2 – Tree Lighting Preview 
 
 will be an oral presentation. 





 









 

 






	13 November 2018 CC Agenda
	RI-1, Meeting Minutes
	RI-2, Personnel Transactions
	RI-3, Registers of Demands
	RI-4, City Council Committees' Activities
	3.1, Lakewood Youth Hall of Fame Regulations
	3.2, Tree Lighting Preview
	LSA-1, Register of Demands
	LHSA-1, Register of Demands

	Back to Top: 


